# APBA Baseball Version 5.75 Installation and Upgrade Guide

Includes Update 4



APBA Games 816 Curie Drive Alpharetta, GA 30005

http://www.apbagames.com/

Copyright 2012 APBA International, Inc.

All Rights Reserved

# Contents

Introduction	3
What's New in APBA Baseball 5.75	3
Installation of APBA Baseball 5.75	4
System Requirements	4
Upgrading from a Previous Version of APBA Baseball	4
Using the Setup Wizard	5
Updates to APBA Baseball 5.75	12
Installing Updates	12
Migrating Data from Previous Versions of APBA Baseball	13
Before You Use the Migration Tool	13
Using the Migration Tool	13
Example 1: Previous APBA Baseball version is on the same computer as 5.75	14
Example 2: Previous APBA Baseball version is on a different computer	19
Example 3: 5.75 computer and previous version computer are connected on a network	19
Field Effects Migration	20
Using APBA Baseball 5.75 in Leagues	21
Installing League Play File Exchange Tool from the 5.75 CD	21
Installing League Play File Exchange Tool from apbagames.com	21
LPFET Basics	22
Using LPFET	22
Example 1: Load a new league into 5.x using a 5.75 C-file	22
Example 2: Create a 5.75 F-file to send to the Commissioner	24
Example 3: Commissioner has Version 5.x, managers use 5.x or 5.75	26
Technical Support	27
Contact information for APBA	27
Based on APBA Baseball Master Game (C) 1987-2012 APBA Game Company	
Version 5.75 development by StumpCat Software	
Version 5.75 Installation and Upgrade Guide written by Bruce Jones	

Microsoft and Windows are registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation

Version 1.4, November 2012 – revised for Update 4

## Introduction

This Guide describes the installation procedures for APBA Baseball 5.75. This new version includes the four main programs from previous versions – Broadcast Blast, League Manager, Advanced Draft, and StatMaster – along with two new utility programs.

Migration Tool provides the ability to transfer installed Data Disks, Managers, and Ballparks from previous versions of APBA Baseball, even if that version is installed on a different computer from Version 5.75.

League Play File Exchange Tool is a utility that allows the exchange of Franchise and Commissioner Files in leagues that are using both Version 5.75 and previous versions of APBA Baseball.

The 5.75 Setup program installs six Ballparks:

- Chicago North
- Cincinnati 1970
- Detroit 1912
- Forbes Field
- Minnesota 1982
- New York Bronx 1976

and four Micromanagers:

- Cap Spalding, Jr.
- Duke Robinson, Jr.
- Larry Pepper
- Johnny McCoy

The Setup CD also contains three season Data Disks - 1921, 1961, and 2011 - that can be selected for installation during initial setup or at a later time.

## What's New in APBA Baseball 5.75

APBA Baseball 5.75 is the first version of the program that can be installed and played in 64-bit versions of Microsoft Windows as a regular application program, without the use of additional operating system software or "virtual" environments.

Along with the revisions that were required within the individual programs, numerous improvements have been made. For example, mouse scroll wheels are now supported in all programs, and many right-click popup menus have been added, including the ability to view player cards.

Each of the four main programs has a "What's New" section in its Help file. Go to Help – What's New within a program to view a summary of the improvements made within that program.

# Installation of APBA Baseball 5.75

#### System Requirements

• Microsoft Windows XP SP3 or later version, including both 32-bit and 64-bit versions of Windows Vista SP2, Windows 7 SP1, and Windows 8.

XP Mode in Windows 7 Professional and Ultimate is supported, but it is **strongly recommended** that you install Version 5.75 directly in Windows 7, rather than under XP Mode, for best performance and compatibility.

- 1 GB available hard disk space is the minimum amount recommended for installation of the program files and multiple season data disks. Storage of many season disks, particularly if statistics and box scores are being saved, will require additional space.
- CD or DVD drive, internal or external.
- Processor, memory, and video card that meet the requirements for the installed version of Windows. Most computers that were designed for Windows Vista or higher will be sufficient.
- It is **highly recommended** that you install the most recent Windows hardware device drivers (particularly video drivers) and system BIOS for your computer and Windows version. Device drivers and system BIOS updates can usually be found on the hardware manufacturer's web site. Some drivers are also provided automatically through Windows Update.

Please note that the use of non-default Windows display settings, such as Windows text sizes larger than 100% or unusual monitor resolutions, or the use of an older monitor and/or video card, may cause compatibility problems with some of the newer graphical features in Baseball 5.75, such as View Card pop-up windows. Most users will not experience these problems.

## Upgrading from a Previous Version of APBA Baseball

If you are a new user of APBA Baseball, skip ahead to the following section, "Using the Setup Wizard."

APBA Baseball 5.75 uses different folders for the installation of programs and data files than were used in previous versions of APBA Baseball. This means that an older version of the program will not be overwritten, but will be completely unaffected by the installation of 5.75. The new and old versions can continue to be used on the same computer.

Because of the change in folder structure, the process of upgrading from an earlier version of APBA Baseball to Version 5.75 consists of two steps:

- 1. Installation of Version 5.75
- 2. Migration of Data Disks, Managers, and Ballparks from the previous version to 5.75

The following sections of this Guide contain complete instructions for completing these two steps.

### Using the Setup Wizard

The screen images in this section represent installation under Windows Vista, 7, and 8. The default program and data folders are different under Windows XP, so differences in the procedures for Windows XP will be described where appropriate.

1. Insert the APBA Baseball 5.75 CD into a CD/DVD drive. Depending on your Windows version and AutoPlay settings, a popup window with one or more actions that can be performed on the CD may open. If so, select the option to run Setup.exe from the CD. If that option is not displayed, then open Windows Explorer, browse to your CD drive, and double-click Setup.exe.

If you are prompted by Windows User Account Control or your anti-virus program to confirm that you want to run Setup.exe, click the "Yes" or "OK" button on the confirmation window.

2. The Setup Wizard will open. Click the "Next" button.

On any screen in Setup, you can click the "Back" button to return to the previous screen, or the "Cancel" button to cancel Setup.

You can also open a copy of this Installation and Upgrade Guide by clicking the "View the Install Guide" button.



3. The License Agreement screen will appear. Read the License Agreement before continuing. When you are finished, click the radio button next to "I accept the agreement" and click the "Next" button.

Setup - APBA Baseball for Windows	
License Agreement Please read the following important information before continuing.	
Please read the following License Agreement. You must accept the terms of this agreement before continuing with the installation.	
*Software License Agreement*	<u> </u>
*_License_*	
<ol> <li>Under this Software License Agreement (the "Agreement"), APBA International, Inc. (the "Vendor") grants to the user (the "Licensee") a non-exclusive and non-transferable license (the "License") to use APBA Baseball (the "Software").</li> </ol>	
<ol> <li>"Software" includes the executable computer programs and any related printed, electronic and online documentation and any other files</li> </ol>	Ŧ
[accept the agreement]	
I do not accept the agreement	
< <u>Back</u> Next>	Cancel

4. The Information screen will be displayed. Read the important information in this window before continuing. When you are finished, click the "Next" button.

Please read the following importar	nt information before continuing.	(
When you are ready to continue v	with Setup, click Next.	
Welcome to APBA Baseball for Wi	ndows v5.75!	-
APBA Baseball for Windows v5.7 Windows game designed to run o Windows. The installer will guide you throug	5 is a new full version of the APBA Baseball for n current 32 and 64 bit versions of Microsoft h the steps to install this new version.	E
Note that the program files will be micromanagers, ballparks, and ot comply with the security provision	e installed in one folder and the data disks, her related files in a different folder. This is to ns of Windows Vista and Windows 7.	
You will have the option to install [2R], and 2011. If you don't insta	3 season disks during the install - 1921, 1961 all them during the initial installation you can do	

5. This step does not apply to the initial installation of Version 5.75. This screen will only appear if you execute Setup again on a computer on which 5.75 has already been installed. The first-time installation instructions continue with Step 6.

The Custom Install screen will allow you to choose whether to do a Full Install of all programs and data files, or to install the three included Season Disks Only. This allows you to return to Setup and install the season disks later if you chose not to install them during the initial installation. Please note that you will be given a chance on a later screen to decide which of the three season disks, if any, that you would like to install.

Setup - APBA Baseball for Windows	
Custom Install Full or Season Disks?	
Select Full Install or Season Disks Only, then click Next.	
Full Install	
Season Disks Only	
< Back N	ext > Cancel

6. The default program file location is displayed. For a Windows XP installation, the default program file path is slightly different - C:\Program Files\APBA Games\Baseball.

Although you are given the ability to select a different folder for installation, it is **strongly recommended** that you use the default folder location. Click the "Next" button to continue.

Setup - APBA Baseball for Windows
Select Destination Location Where should APBA Baseball for Windows program files be installed?
Setup will install the APBA Baseball for Windows program files into the following folder:
To continue, click Next. If you would like to select a different folder, click Browse.
C:\Program Files (x86)\APBA Games\Baseball Browse
At least 0.8 MB of free disk space is required.
< Back Next > Cancel

7. The Select Personal Data Directory screen appears. The default data folder for Windows XP is C:\Documents and Settings\All Users\Documents\APBA Games\Baseball.

Again, although you are given the ability to select a different folder for data, it is **strongly recommended** that you use the default folder location. Click the "Next" button to continue.

Select Personal	Data Directory			
Where should	your data disk files be	e installed?		Ċ
Select the fold	er in whi <mark>c</mark> h Setup sho	ould install your data	disk files, ther	n dick Next.
C:\Users\Publi	ic\Documents\APBA (	Games Baseball		Browse

8. The Data Disks screen is displayed. This is where you are able to select which of the three included season data disks you wish to install at this time. Click the check box next to each season that you wish to install. You can run Setup again later and install any seasons that you do not choose to install now. When you have finished selecting the seasons to install, click the "Next" button.



9. The Select Start Menu Folder screen allows you to select the folder in the Start Menu that will contain the 5.75 program icons. You can also select not to create a folder in the Start Menu by clicking the check box at the bottom of the screen. Most users should accept the default folder name of "APBA Games" and click the "Next" button.

Setup - APBA Baseball for Windows	
Select Start Menu Folder Where should Setup place the program's shortcuts?	
Setup will create the program's shortcuts in the following Start M	lenu folder. Browse.
APBA Games	Browse
Don't create a Start Menu folder	Cancel
Each III and	

10. The Select Additional Tasks screen allows you to choose whether to create icons for the 5.75 programs and documentation on your Windows Desktop. These are entirely optional – you are not required to use them. Select whichever icons you wish to have Setup create for you. When you are finished making your selections, click the "Next" button.

Setup - APBA Baseball for Windows	• <b>X</b>
Select Additional Tasks Which additional tasks should be performed?	
Select the additional tasks you would like Setup to perform while installing APBA Baseball for Windows, then click Next.	
Additional icons:	
Create desktop icon for APBA Baseball	
Create desktop icon for League Manager	
Create desktop icons for Advanced Draft	
Create desktop icon for StatMaster	
Create desktop icon for Migration tool	
Create desktop icon for Migration Tool Help File	
Create desktop icon for APBA Baseball Tutorial	
< Back Next >	Cancel

11. The Ready to Install screen will display the folder selections that were made on previous screens. If these are correct, click the "Install" button. Otherwise, click the "Back" button and continue back until you reach the screen with the information that you wish to change.

٢	Setup - APBA Baseball for Windows	X
	Ready to Install Setup is now ready to begin installing APBA Baseball for Windows on your computer.	
	Click Install to continue with the installation, or click Back if you want to review or change any settings.	
	Programs folder: C: \Program Files (x86) \APBA Games \Baseball Data Disks folder: C: \Users \Public \Documents \APBA Games \Baseball	*
	٠ •	~
	< <u>B</u> ack Install	Cancel

- 12. The Installing screen will appear and display a progress bar as it extracts the files, copies them to your computer, and configures the programs. This will take several minutes, depending on the speed of your computer and your hard drive.
- 13. When the installation is finished, the Completing the Setup Wizard screen will be displayed. You have the option of selecting to view the Quick Start Guide after the Setup Wizard has closed. The Quick Start Guide is a useful overview of the program's functions, and should be viewed by all new users.

Click the "Finish" button to close the Setup Wizard and complete the installation.



- 14. Once the CD installation has completed, follow the instructions in the next section of this Guide, "Updates to APBA Baseball 5.75," to obtain and install the most recent program Update for Baseball 5.75.
- 15. Congratulations! You're ready to play APBA Baseball 5.75.

Depending on the selections that you made during Setup, you can start the individual 5.75 programs through the Start Menu, or by using icons on the Windows Desktop.

You can now install additional season Data Disks, Ballparks, and Managers, using the instructions given on those disks.

If you have a previous version of APBA Baseball, you can use the new Migration Tool utility to transfer your previously-installed data files into 5.75. The Migration Tool is automatically installed during Setup. See the following section of this Guide, "Migrating Data from Previous Versions of APBA Baseball," for complete instructions on using the Migration Tool.

# Updates to APBA Baseball 5.75

Updates for Baseball 5.75 will be made available periodically on the <u>www.apbagames.com</u> web site. These Updates will contain software patches for issues that have been reported to APBA by game owners, and may also include functional upgrades for the individual programs within Baseball 5.75.

Update 4, released on 11/5/2012, is the current version.

Updates are cumulative, so all of the features and patches that were included in previous Updates will also be included in the most recent Update. This means that a new install (or re-install) of Baseball 5.75 will only need to have the most recent Update applied to bring it up to the current level.

Updates will normally provide complete replacements for all of the individual programs, and may also include new or revised documentation. An Update Information document that describes the changes included within the Update will also be made available on the <u>www.apbagames.com</u> web site.

#### Installing Updates

The typical installation process for a Baseball 5.75 Update is as follows:

- 1. Go to the Baseball 5.75 page at <u>http://apbagames.com/apbabaseball/baseball-5-75</u> and click on the link for the current Update. This link may also appear in the "What's New" list on the apbagames.com main page.
- 2. Depending on the web browser that you used to access the web site, you may be prompted to Save or Run the file. Choose "Save" and select an appropriate location, such as your default Download folder or your Windows Desktop. Remember where you saved the file!
- 3. The file will be in compressed .zip format, and will have a filename such as APBA575Update4.zip. The method used to extract the contents of the zip file will depend on your version of Windows. Windows Vista and later versions have the ability to open zip files directly. Windows XP users will need to obtain a separate unzip utility program.
- 4. The zip file will contain an executable program file with a filename such as APBA575Update4 Setup.exe. Save the extracted .exe file to your Windows Desktop or your default Download folder. Remember where you saved the file!
- 5. Double-click the .exe file to start the Update process. If you receive a User Account Control popup window, click the "Yes" button to continue.
- 6. Most of the screens displayed during the Update install will be the same as the ones that are displayed during the program installation process, as described in the previous section of this Guide. The main differences will be in any new screens that are required to choose options for a newly-added feature, such as the screen that is displayed for the installation of Field Effects files. The last screen will include an option that will allow you to display the Update Information file after you exit Setup.

Once you complete the above steps, Baseball 5.75 will be updated to the most recent version.

# Migrating Data from Previous Versions of APBA Baseball

IMPORTANT NOTE: The current version of the Migration Tool will transfer existing Ballpark Field Effects files. If you have already migrated your Ballparks using a previous version of the Migration Tool, please see the topic "Field Effects Migration" later in this document.

APBA Baseball 5.75 stores Season Disk, Ballpark, and Micromanager data files in a new folder structure. As a result, the data file locations for these items are different from the folders used in earlier versions of APBA Baseball.

If you have previously installed Version 5.5 or earlier, you can manually copy your existing Ballpark and Micromanager files into the proper folders in 5.75 and reinstall your Season Disks. However, if you would like some automated assistance with copying your data, you can use the new Migration Tool utility to assist you in transferring your existing Season, Ballpark, and Micromanager files into 5.75.

The Migration Tool allows you to select which of your existing data files you want to transfer from your previous APBA Baseball installation to 5.75. It can be used even if your previous version is installed on a different computer. Examples of different ways to use the Migration Tool are shown below.

## Before You Use the Migration Tool

Please understand that the Migration Tool is provided as an aid for transferring valid existing data from an older version of APBA Baseball. The Migration Tool does some basic checking of the input data for validity, as described in the "Using" section. However, it will not be able to detect all cases of corrupt, missing, or incomplete data, such as data disk file errors, missing ballpark graphics, and incomplete micromanager files, nor will it be able to identify files that have been corrupted due to hard drive errors. These files would not be usable in previous versions of APBA Baseball, either.

It is strongly advised that you examine all of your existing data files and folders prior to migration, to determine whether there is unneeded or potentially faulty data that should not be migrated.

## Using the Migration Tool

The screen images in this section show the Migration Tool running on Windows XP SP3.

Al	None	A	None Al	None

Example 1: Previous APBA Baseball version is on the same computer as 5.75

 Go to the Windows Start Menu, and select All Programs – APBA Games – Migration Tool in Windows 7/Vista, or Programs – APBA Games – Migration Tool in Windows XP. If you chose to have a Migration Tool shortcut placed on the Windows Desktop during installation of Version 5.75, you can use that shortcut icon to run the tool.

Important additional instructions for users of Windows 7/Vista Professional XP Mode:

If the previous version of APBA Baseball is installed under the XP Mode feature of Windows 7/Vista Professional, you must copy the Migration Tool program file (C:\Program Files (x86)\APBA Games\Baseball\Migration.exe) to the XP Mode Desktop and run it from there.

If the default values were used when both XP Mode and 5.75 were installed, the Migration Tool will locate the destination 5.75 data folder path automatically. If the 5.75 data folders are not found, the "Change Dest" button will be displayed. Click the "Change Dest" button and browse to the correct Baseball data folder location.

The default 5.75 data folder path, as seen from the XP Mode Desktop, is: \tsclient\C\Users\Public\Documents\APBA Games\Baseball.



- 2. Click the "Find Files" button. The Browse for Folders window will open.
- 3. Using the drive and folder menu in the Browse for Folders window, locate and select the folder that contains your previous APBA Baseball installation. For most users, this will be C:\BBW. If you installed the previous version to a different drive or folder, select that folder.



4. Click the "OK" button once you have selected the correct folder.

5. If the MA\_BB.ini file is found in the C:\WINDOWS folder, a popup window will appear that gives you a choice of listing all of the .WDD data disk folders located under your BBW folder, or of listing the data disk folders that are also recorded in the MA\_BB.ini file. The main difference between the two options is that the ini file contains data disk descriptions which would be migrated to 5.75. On the other hand, it is possible that you have some (probably unofficial) data disks that are not currently listed in your ini file. You may wish to run the Migration Tool first with option "MA\_BB Only," then run it a second time with option "All" to look for other folders.

If the MA\_BB.ini file is not found, then all of the .WDD data disk folders located under the BBW folder will be listed.

Choose Disks to List	X
Do you want to list all data disks found c	r only those also listed in the MA_BB.ini file?
AI	MA_BB Only

6. The Migration Tool will now examine the available Season Data disks, Micromanagers, and Ballparks, and do basic error checking. A status bar window will be displayed on the screen during the examination of disks.

If any problems are encountered with Data disks or Micromanagers, the Bad Disk List window will appear. For each error, a reason will be given in brackets after the disk name. The reasons that may be displayed for bad Data disks are as follows:

- [Schedule]
  - a) If the Schedule.org in any data disk \ORGxxxxx subfolder is 0 bytes.
  - b) If a test loading of the Schedule.org fails (something is bad within the file.)
- [DAT File]
  - a) The Players.Dat, NStat.Dat, or PStat.Dat file is missing or is 0 bytes.
  - b) Any of those files are not of the proper size, which indicates corruption of the file.
- [No Organizations]
  - a) The data disk has no organizations there are no \ORGxxxxx files in the data disk folder.
  - b) The Org.Dat file in the \ORGxxxxx subfolders is missing or corrupt.
- [Invalid Path]

Primarily a safety check. This error is highly unlikely to occur.

• [Unknown Error]

While verifying the disk, a problem was encountered with the disk, and verification of the disk stopped. Most likely caused by a corrupt or missing file.

An error in ANY organization on a Data disk (the \Orgxxxx subfolders) will set the disk as bad.



For Micromanagers, the Migration Tool looks for .DCT files and attempts to read the manager's name from the file. If it succeeds, the Manager is considered to be valid. If it fails, the .DCT is considered corrupt, and its filename is displayed in the Bad Disk List.

Any Ballpark for which an ini file exists will be considered valid. The Migration Tool will ignore any Ballpark graphics if an ini for that Ballpark is not found. No Ballpark errors will be displayed.

After you have reviewed the Bad Disk List, close the window to continue the migration process.

7. The valid installed Data Disks, Managers, and Ballparks will now be displayed in the Migration Tool window.

APBA Baseball Migration Tool The Help Find Files Location: C:\BBW		
Destination: C:\Documents	and Settings\All Users\Documents\APBA Games	\Baseball Ballparks
1966.WDD       ▲         1967.WDD Season       1969.WDD Season         1969.WDD Season       1970.WDD Season         1971.WDD       1972.WDD Season         1972.WDD Season       1973.WDD         1972.WDD Season       1973.WDD         1972.WDD Season       1979.WDD         2004.WDD       2004.WDD         2005.WDD       2005.WDD         2006.WDD       2006.WDD         2009.WDD       2009.WDD         2010.WDD       2011.WDD Season	Spalding. Jr., Cap [CAPT2] Stengel, Casey [Casey] Chico, Chi-Chi [Chico] Hustle, Charle [CHUST] Murphy, Dan [DM] Robinson Jr., Duke [DUKE2] Robinson JV, Duke [DUKE3] Robinson JV, Duke [DUKe3] Robinson JV, Duke [DUKe4] Weaver, Earl [EarlW] Gomez, Eddle [Gome2] Michaels, Grady [GRADY] Hernandez, Felpe [Indz] Conley, Jake [JKCY] Rogers, Juice [Juice] Little, Art [Litt] Long, Bingo [Long] Moses, Johnny [Loudd] Pepper, Larry [LPEPR]	California 1966- Chicago North (Night) 1916- Chicago North (Night) 1916- Chicago South (Night) 1991- Chicago South (Night) 1991- Cincinnati 1970- Cincinati 1970- Cleveland (Night) 1994- Detroit (Night) 1912- Detroit 1912- Detroit 1912- Detroit 1912- Ebbets Field (Night) 1913-1957 Ebbets Field (Night) 1913-1957 Florida (Night) 1993- Florida (1993- Florida 1993- Florida 1993- Florida 1993- Florida 1993- Florida 1993- Florida 1993- Florida 1993- Florida 1993- Florida 1993- Statistical 1993- Florida 1993- Florida 1993- Statistical 1993- Compositical 1993- Compositical 1993- Compositical 1993- Compositical 1993- Compositical 1993- Statistical 1993- Statistica
Al None Note: Grayed out items are already installed	Al None	All None
Copy settings from MA_BB.ini		
	Copy All Selected Items	

 Click the check box next to each file that you wish to migrate to 5.75. Any Data Disks, Managers, and Ballparks that are already installed in 5.75 will be grayed out and will not be selectable.

If you wish to migrate all files, click the "All" button at the bottom of each file type list. Note that you must click the "All" button for each of the three file types in order to migrate every available data file.

You also have the option of migrating your program preferences settings from the MA\_BB.ini file in the C:\WINDOWS folder of your previous version of APBA Baseball (if that file is found.) Existing program options will be copied into the configuration file for 5.75.

Click the check box marked "Copy settings from MA\_BB.ini" to select this option.

Note that you may need to re-select your default ballpark in 5.75 after the migration has been completed, if that ballpark was not already installed prior to the migration.

Maration Tool		
File Help		
Find Files Location: C:\BBW Destination: C:\Documents	and Settings\All Users\Documents\APBA Games	\Baseball
Data Disks	Managers	Ballparks
♥ 1966.WDD       ▲         ♥ 1967.WDD Season       ♥ 1968.WDD Season         ♥ 1968.WDD Season       ♥ 1970.WDD Season         ♥ 1970.WDD Season       ♥ 1970.WDD         ♥ 1973.WDD Season       ♥ 1973.WDD         ♥ 1973.WDD       ♥ 1973.WDD         ♥ 1973.WDD       ♥ 20004.WDD         ♥ 20004.WDD       ♥ 2005.WDD         ♥ 2005.WDD       ♥ 2005.WDD         ♥ 2006.WDD       ♥ 2008.WDD         ♥ 2009.WDD       ♥ 2009.WDD         ♥ 2001.WDD Season       ♥	Spalding, Jr, Cap [CAPT2] ♥ Stengel, Casey [Casey] ♥ Chico, Chi-Chi [Chico] ♥ Huste, Charle [CHUST] ♥ Murphy, Dan [DM] ■ Robinson, Jr, Duke [DUKE2] ♥ Robinson III, Duke [DUKe3] ♥ Robinson IV, Duke [DUke4] ♥ Weaver, Earl [EarlW] ♥ Gomez, Eddle [Gome2] ♥ Michaels, Grady [GRADY] ♥ Hermandez, Felpe [hnd2] ♥ Conley, Jake [IXCY] ■ McCoy, Johnny [JMCOY] ♥ Rogers, Julce [Juice] ♥ Little, Art [Litt] ♥ Long, Bingo [Long] ♥ Moses, Johnny [LOBd] ♥ Pepper, Larry [LPEPR]	Calfornia 1966-     Chicago North (Night) 1916-     Chicago North (Night) 1916-     Chicago South (Night) 1991-     Chicago South (Night) 1991-     Chicago South (Night) 1991-     Chicago South (Night) 1970-     Chicanati 1970-     Cleveland (Night) 1994-     Cleveland 1994-     Detroit (1912-     Detroit 1912-     Portos Field (Night) 1913-1957     € Ebbets Field (Night) 1913-1957     € Florida 1993-     Forbes Field (Night) 1909-1969     Forbes Field (Night) 1909-1969     Forbes Field 1906-1969     ♥ Houston (Night) 1965-     ♥
All None	All None	All None
Note: Grayed out items are already installed		
Copy settings from MA_BB.ini		
	Copy All Selected Items	

9. When you have finished making your selections, click the "Copy All Selected Items" button. The migration process will begin. The names of the files being copied will be displayed on the status bar at the bottom of the window. A smaller Windows file copy progress window may also appear if many files are being migrated.

The length of time required to complete the migration will depend on the number of data disks being migrated and the speed of the computer. Data disks that contain multiple organizations and/or box scores and other completed season play data will take much longer to copy than disks that do not include such data. Managers and Ballparks will be copied very quickly.

10. When the migration has been completed, a confirmation window will display, and all of the selected files will be grayed out in the file type lists. Click the "OK" button to close the Migration Complete window.



11. Close the Migration Tool by selecting File – Exit, or by clicking the white X in the red box in the top right corner.

#### Example 2: Previous APBA Baseball version is on a different computer

In order to migrate data files from a previous version of APBA Baseball that is installed on a different computer than 5.75, you must copy the BBW folder on the other computer, and all files and folders located within it, to removable media. This can be a CD, DVD, USB flash drive, or USB external hard drive. Both the computer containing 5.75 and the computer containing the previous APBA Baseball version must support the type of removable media that is chosen.

If you wish to migrate your program preferences settings from the previous version, you will also need to copy the MA\_BB.ini file to the CD, DVD, or USB device.

Please note that, unless the previous version of APBA Baseball contains a small number of data files, the BBW folder structure may not fit on a data CD. DVDs and USB drives should have sufficient capacity for most users.

The additional steps for migrating data files from a different computer are as follows:

- 1. Copy the entire BBW folder structure (usually C:\BBW) and, optionally, the MA\_BB.ini file (usually in the C:\WINDOWS folder) from the previous version of APBA Baseball to your chosen type of removable media.
- 2. Remove the disc or USB device from the other computer and insert it into the computer on which you have installed 5.75.
- 3. Follow all of the instructions listed in Example 1 above. In Step 3, select the disc or external drive that contains the copied BBW folder.

Example 3: 5.75 computer and previous version computer are connected on a network

If the computers containing the two versions of APBA Baseball are connected through a network, and if file sharing is enabled on each computer, the migration can also be conducted across the network. You should only use this method if you are very familiar with computer network setup and configuration. APBA cannot provide technical support for networking issues.

The procedure would be the same as in Example 1 above, except in Step 3, you would select the computer containing the previous version, and the BBW folder on that computer. The MA\_BB.ini file in C:\WINDOWS will be located automatically by the Migration Tool.

## **Field Effects Migration**

The current version of Migration Tool has been updated to include migration of Field Effects files installed in a previous version of APBA Baseball to Baseball 5.75. This should resolve the issue that some users have experienced with loss of Field Effects for a few older Ballparks that are no longer available from APBA.

For those users who have already migrated their Ballparks, a new feature has been added to Migration Tool that will allow all of your existing Ballparks to be re-migrated from your previous version of Baseball, this time with the FE files included.

To re-enable your Ballparks so that they can again be selected for migration:

- 1. Start the current version of Migration Tool.
- 2. Make sure that the correct BBW folder location has been selected.
- 3. Click the "Enable All" button at the bottom of the Ballparks list.

Eind Files	Location:	F:\APBA\BBW			
	Destination:	C:\Users\Public	\Documents\APBA Games\Baseball		
Data Disks			Managers	Ballparks	
1924. WDD     1950. WDD     1958. WDD     1958. WDD     1958. WDD     1958. WDD     1958. WDD     1960. WDD     1967. WDD     1975. WDD     1975. WDD     1977. WDD     1980. WDD     1987. WDD     1980. WDD     1987. WDD     1980. WDD     1991. WDD     1991. WDD     1992. WDD     1993. WDD	Season Season Season D Season D Season Seaso	× E	Fornklin, Izzy [1]     Miler IV, Buck (Buck3)     Miler IV, Buck (Buck3)     Miler IV, Buck (Buck4)     Head, Bumpus (BUMHD)     Spalding, 3r, Cap (CAPT2)     Murphy, Dan (DM)     Robinson, 3r, Duke (DUKE2)     McCov, Johnny (MCOV)     Pepper, Larry (LPEPR)     Martin, Billy (Marth)     Moses, Johnny (WeST)	Baker Field (Day) Baseball Field Boston (Night) 1934- Boston (Night) 1934- Cricago North (Night) 1916- Cricago North 1916- Cricinago North 1916- Cricinago North 1916- Comiskey Park (1910-1990) Detroit (Night) 1912- Detroit 1912- (Night) 1909-1969 Forbes Field (Night) 1909-1969 Forbes Field 1909-1969 Los Angeles 1962- Los Angeles 1962- Minnesota 1982- Montreal 1977- New York Bronx (Night) 1976- New York Bronx (Night) 1976-	
All		None		ne <u>A</u> ll <u>N</u> one	
ote: Grayed out	items are alr	eady installed		Enable All	
			Conv All Selected Item	1	

- 4. Select the Ballparks that you wish to re-migrate with their Field Effects files included. In most cases, you will only need to re-migrate Ballparks that are no longer in use and are therefore not included in the current annual FE file updates.
- 5. Click the "Copy All Selected Items" button.

# Using APBA Baseball 5.75 in Leagues

APBA Baseball 5.75 can be used in draft and replay leagues in the same way as earlier versions of the program. Please note, however, that Franchise Files, Commissioner Files, and Backup files from Version 5.75 cannot be processed by earlier versions, and 5.75 is unable to read any of those files that were created on earlier versions. The file compression technology that was used in earlier versions is not compatible with 64-bit Windows.

In order to allow the exchange of F-files and C-files between managers who are using Version 5.75 and managers who are using Version 5.5 or 5.0, the League Play File Exchange Tool (LPFET) is included on the Version 5.75 CD. It is also available on the apbagames.com web site.

The LPFET is only supported for use with Version 5.5 and 5.0 (which will be referred to as 5.x for the rest of this section) although it may also work with earlier versions of APBA Baseball.

While it is highly recommended to have all members of an APBA Baseball league use Version 5.75 of the program, the LPFET allows you to have mixed leagues, where the members use a combination of 5.75 and 5.x. League members who are using Version 5.x will need to install the LPFET, which will allow them to convert 5.75 C-files and F-files to 5.x format, and to convert 5.x C-files and F-files to 5.75 format. Members who are using Version 5.75 will NOT need the LPFET.

#### Installing League Play File Exchange Tool from the 5.75 CD

- 1. Load the APBA Baseball 5.75 CD onto the computer that contains Version 5.x.
- 2. Using Windows Explorer, locate the Tools folder on the CD.
- 3. Copy the LeaguePlayUtility.exe program from the CD to the computer. This can be done in several ways, but the simplest is to drag the program from the CD drive to the Desktop folder.



4. Double-click the LeaguePlayUtility icon on your Windows Desktop to open the program.

#### Installing League Play File Exchange Tool from apbagames.com

- Download LPFET.zip from apbagames.com. Depending on the web browser that you used to access the web site, you may be prompted to Save or Run the file. Choose "Save" and select an appropriate location, such as your default Download folder or your Windows Desktop. Remember where you saved the file!
- 2. The file will be in compressed .zip format, and will contain an executable program file, a Help file, and a Usage Guide file. Save the extracted files to your Windows Desktop, or to a new folder, such as C:\LPFET. Remember where you saved the files!
- 3. Double-click LeaguePlayUtility.exe to open the program.

#### LPFET Basics

The functions that are provided in the main LPFET window allow you to create and load Version 5.75 C-files and F-files for a league data disk that is installed in Version 5.x.

LPFET uses Commissioner file and Franchise file dialog windows that are basically the same as those screens in Version 5.75, and very similar to the ones in Version 5.x. The most significant difference is that file names are no longer restricted to the old limit of eight characters. You can now use a longer and more descriptive name, as illustrated in the following examples:

C-TNL Week 10 play ball F-SFS 7-24-12 lineups F-Squirrels Week 6 results

Using LPFET

All screen images in this section show the LPFET running on a Windows XP computer with APBA Baseball Version 5.5 already installed.

Example 1: Load a new league into 5.x using a 5.75 C-file

You have an initial Commissioner file for a league in Version 5.75 format, and you need to load it into Version 5.x.

1. Open the LPFET and click the "Load Commissioner File" button.

Note that no other buttons are active, because a valid league Data Disk has not been selected in the Data Disks and Organizations fields.

APBA League Play File Exchange To	ool 📃 🗖 🔀			
File Commissioner Files Franchise Files Help				
APBA League Play File Exchange Tool				
Data Disks OFAS Original Franci	hise All-Stars 🗸			
Organizations PROFESSIONAL BASEBALL				
Create Commissioner File	Create Franchise File			
Load Commissioner File	Load Franchise File			
Commissioner File Options	Franchise File Options			
Exit				

2. In the "Select Commissioner Transfer File" window, browse to the C-file that you wish to load, click on the filename, and click the "Open" button.

Select Commissi	oner Transfer Fil	e		? 🗙
Look in:	🛅 BBW		🔽 🧿 🕫 🛤	▼
My Recent Documents Desktop My Documents My Computer	1930.WDD     1964.WDD     2011.WDD     ANIMATE     ANIMATE     AUDIO     BACKOROP     OFAS.WDD     TABLES     C-TNL initial fie.L	PF		
My Network Places	File name:	C-TNL initial file.LPF	~	Open
	Files of type:	Transfer Files (C-*.LPF)	*	Cancel

3. The conversion and loading of the C-file should only take a few seconds. You will receive a confirmation popup window when the C-file has been loaded. Click the "OK" button to close the confirmation window.

League Play F 🔀
Commissioner File: C-TNL initial file.LPF loaded successfully.
ОК

Example 2: Create a 5.75 F-file to send to the Commissioner

You are using Version 5.x in your league, and you need to send a Franchise file to the Commissioner, who is using Version 5.75.

1. Open the LPFET and select the Data Disk for the appropriate league and the Organization in that league, using the drop-down menus.

APBA League Play File Exchange To	pol 📃 🗖 🔀			
File Commissioner Files Franchise Files He	lp			
APBA League Play File Exchange Tool				
Data Disks TNL2011 The New Le	eague 2011 🗸			
Organizations TNL Major Leagues 20	)11			
Create Commissioner File	Create Franchise File			
Load Commissioner File	Load Franchise File			
Commissioner File Options	Franchise File Options			
Exit				

- 2. Once the selections have been made, click the "Create Franchise File" button.
- 3. In the Create Franchise File screen, choose the destination folder for the F-file, type in the file's name, and make sure that you have checked the boxes for all desired options and have selected the correct Franchise Teams(s).

Create Franchise File		×
Current Folder C:\BBW\TNL2011.WDD\ORG000 Change Folder Filename: (LPF extension will be a F-TNL Squirrels Week 1 lineups	01\ added <del>w</del> hen saved)	
Options  Include Rosters Include Farm Rosters Include Lineups Include Rotations Franchise Team(s) San Francisco Squirrels	League Teams Greensboro Grasshoppers Boston Chowdahheads New York Taxis Chicago Chickens Cleveland Crushers Detroit Muscle Cars Minnesota Snowballs Los Angeles Stars Oakland Owls Winston-Salem Dash Atlanta Peach Pits Westchester Bombers Greensboro Streetwalkers Duncan Donuts Cincinnati Cheese Coneys Houston Spacemen Pittsburgh Popups St. Louis Arches Burbank Studios	OK Select Team DeSelect Cancel Help

In most leagues, you will want to include Rosters, Lineups, and Rotations. If there is a Farm Organization in the league, you will also want to include Farm Rosters.

If you are managing more than one Franchise Team, you can select all of your teams, add them to the Franchise Team(s) list, and create a single Franchise file. You do not have to create separate F-files for each team.

After all information has been entered, click the "OK" button.

4. A confirmation will appear when the F-file has been created and saved in the specified folder.



Example 3: Commissioner has Version 5.x, managers use 5.x or 5.75

In this case, the Commissioner and any other managers who are using Version 5.x will use the LPFET.

1. The Commissioner creates a C-file by clicking the "Create Commissioner File" button and selecting the folder, entering the file name, and selecting options.

Create Commissioner File			
Note : Commissioner File Creation is for League Commissioners.			
Current Folder C:\BBW\TNL2011.WDD\ORG00001\ Change Folder			
Filename: (.LPF extension will be added when saved) C-TNL Week 1 results			
Options  Transfer all files (new League Setup, no boxscores)  Custom (existing Leagues)  Schedule and Statistics  Team Rosters and Player Files Farm Team Rosters Farm Team Rosters Farm Lineups Boxscores 4/ 1/2012 Ko Current Day	OK Cancel Help		

A confirmation window appears when the C-file has been created.



The Commissioner then sends this C-file to all managers.

2. 5.75 users load the C-file directly into League Manager.

5.x users load the C-file using the "Load Commissioner File" option in LPFET, as described in Example 1.

3. 5.75 users create F-files directly in League Manager.

5.x users create F-files using the "Create Franchise File" option in LPFET, as described in Example 2.

4. The Commissioner loads the F-files, which are all in Version 5.75 format, by using the "Load Franchise File" option in LPFET.

# **Technical Support**

If you encounter problems while installing or using APBA Baseball 5.75, you should start by checking the program documentation.

This Guide covers most of the situations that you will encounter during installation and migration.

The Quick Start Guide and the Help files contained within each of the programs are excellent resources for information about how to use all of the features of APBA Baseball 5.75.

The <u>www.apbagames.com</u> web site will have updated information about any recent issues that have been reported by game owners.

If you need additional assistance, owners of APBA Baseball 5.75 are entitled to telephone technical support at no additional cost. Telephone support is available on weekdays from 9:00 AM to 5:00 PM, Eastern Time.

Technical support for APBA Baseball 5.75 is also available via e-mail at <u>techsupp@apbagames.com</u>. Please describe your problem as clearly as possible in your e-mail. You may be asked to provide copies of files that would allow Technical Support to recreate your problem.

#### Contact information for APBA

Mailing Address: APBA Games 816 Curie Drive Alpharetta, GA 30005 <u>Customer Service and Sales</u>: (800) 334-2722 Fax: (770) 622-8834 <u>E-mail</u>: Technical Support: <u>techsupp@apbagames.com</u> Customer Support: <u>custsupp@apbagames.com</u>

APBA Games can only provide technical support for APBA products. APBA is unable to provide support for any of the following:

- Microsoft Windows installation, configuration, or usage;
- Computer hardware problems;
- Network setup, configuration, or administration;
- Game utilities or data files sold or distributed by third parties.